
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

SCOTTS VALLEY 

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 
 
 

Board of Directors 

Agenda 

Wednesday, May 11, 2022, 6:00 P.M.  

Scotts Valley City Hall 

One Civic Center Drive, Scotts Valley CA 95066 
 

Agendas and Board Packets are available on the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District (SVFPD) 

website at www.scottsvalleyfire.com. 
 

Any person who requires a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate 

in a public meeting should make such a request to Ron Whittle, Board Secretary, for immediate 

consideration.  
  

Teleconference Notice 

Director Patterson will be joining the meeting via teleconference from the following location: 

5295 Lower Honoapiilani Road, Lahaina, HI 96761 
 

Director Harmon will be joining the meeting via teleconference from the following location: 

1309 W. Rancho Vista Blvd., Palmdale, CA 93551 
 

1.   Call to Order  

1.1  Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

1.2 Roll Call  
  

2. Public Comment (GC §54954.3) 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any matter not 

on the agenda. Any matter that requires Board action will be referred to staff for a report and action 

at a subsequent Board meeting. 
 

3. Agenda Amendments (GC §54954.2) – Discussion/Action 
 

4.  Consent Calendar 

(Consent calendar items will be enacted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 

items unless a Board Member, Staff, or member of the public requests removal of the item for separate 

action.) 
 

4.1 Minutes: Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2022 
 

4.2 Minutes: Approve Special Board Meeting Minutes of April 13, 2022 
 

4.3 Approve SVFPD Claims Disbursements for the Month of March 1, 2022 through March 31, 

2022 in the Amount of: 
 

Payroll and Benefits: $454,069.39 

General Fund:  $  24,881.40   

SCHMIT:  $    2,649.23           

TOTAL:  $481,600.02 
 

file://///svfd2/admin/data/AGENDAS/2013/2012/www.scottsvalleyfire.com


 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Board of Directors Meeting for May 11, 2022 

Agenda 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

4.4 Approve SVFPD Claims Disbursements for the Month of April 1, 2022 through April 30, 

2022 in the Amount of: 
 

Payroll and Benefits: $439,837.51 

General Fund:  $  93,949.73   

Capital Outlay: $   -1,313.00            

SCHMIT:  $   1,695.79     

TOTAL:  $534,170.03 
 

 4.5 Approve Computer Surplus Equipment List 
 

5. Discussion Items  

5.1 None 
 

6. Action Items – Discussion/Action  

6.1 Approve Agreement with the Santa Cruz Consolidated Emergency Communications Center for 

Communications Services 
 

6.2 Adopt Resolution 2022-5: Resolution Adopting Preliminary Budgets for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
 

685010  General Fund:   $11,405,523 

685030  Capital Outlay/Zone A:  $  2,200,944 

685040  SCHMIT:    $     418,563 
 

Set public hearing for adoption of the final budget for the August 10, 2022, Regular Board 

Meeting: 6:00 P.M.  
 

Direct staff to publish a public hearing notice and make the budget available for public review  
 

 6.3 Consider audit proposals received from the request for proposal to conduct financial audits and 

preparation of the District’s Financial Statement for fiscal years ending 2022, 2023, and 2024. 

The Board will review the proposals and possibly enter into an agreement with an auditing firm 
 

7. Board of Directors and Administrative Reports – Information/Discussion 
(No action will be taken on any questions raised by the Board at this time.) 
 

7.1 Board of Directors Report – Directors 
 

7.2 Annual SCHMIT Report – Battalion Chief LoFranco 

 

7.3 Administrative Report – Chief Officers 
 

8.  Correspondence  

8.1 Thank You Letter Senior Life Online 
 

8.2 Thank You Letters Scotts Valley High School Students  
 

9. Request for Future Agenda Items   
 

10.  Adjournment 
 

Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting: 

Wednesday, June 8, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 













































 1 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN SANTA CRUZ CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY 

 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER AND 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

FOR COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

 

 This Agreement is entered into on __________________, 2022, between the SANTA 

CRUZ REGIONAL 9-1-1, a joint exercise of powers agency organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of California by the County of Santa Cruz and the Cities of Capitola, Santa 

Cruz and Watsonville, hereinafter referred to as "Authority" and SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE 

PROTECTION DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "District". 

 

 W I T N E S E T H 

 

 WHEREAS, it is beneficial for the Authority to provide consolidated communications 

services to all County Fire Agencies which includes all Fire Districts and Departments within 

Santa Cruz County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, District has requested Authority to provide communications services to 

District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Authority is willing to provide such services provided that District 

reimburses Authority for all costs incurred in providing such services; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable that the parties enter into the Agreement as set 

forth below; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the Authority and the District 

as follows: 

 

 1.  Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, 

and shall be automatically renewed for two (2) successive one (1) year periods unless terminated 

in accordance with the terms of Paragraph 4.  Renewal shall be upon the same terms and 

conditions as set forth herein, except that the annual Basic Service payments by District as 

required by Paragraph 3 (a) shall be modified each year in accordance with the provisions of 

EXHIBIT C and EXHIBIT E (Authority Policy No. 332, Revenue) and GIS Services 

reimbursements shall be modified each year in accordance with the provisions of EXHIBIT D 

and EXHIBIT E (Authority Policy No. 332, Revenue). 

 

 



 2 

2.  Obligations of the Parties.  

 

  (a) Authority will provide communications services to District as set forth in 

EXHIBIT A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

  (b) In consideration for the services provided by Authority, District shall provide 

personnel and facilities as set forth in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference.   

 

 3.  Payment.  District shall make payments as described in EXHIBIT C, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference.  The payments identified in EXHIBIT C have been 

calculated as follows: 

 

  (a) Basic Services.  District shall pay Authority the amount as derived from the 

application of the Fire District Cost Sharing Plan to the Authority's Total Annual Budget for each 

fiscal year during which this Agreement is in effect.  The total percentage of the Authority's 

Annual Budget which is the collective responsibility of all participating Fire Districts is set forth 

by Authority Policy No. 332, Revenue, attached hereto as EXHIBIT E and incorporated herein 

by reference.  The Fire District Cost Sharing Plan, by which each participating Fire District is 

charged for their proportionate share of the total Fire District responsibility is set forth in 

EXHIBIT C.  

 

  (b) Discretionary Services.  District shall reimburse Authority for such 

discretionary services as described in EXHIBIT A and EXHIBIT B. 

    

(c) Geographical Information System (GIS) Services. District shall reimburse 

Authority for District’s proportionate share of the Authority’s actual costs associated with 

providing specialized GIS and mapping services for Santa Cruz County fire and emergency 

medical services agencies as described in EXHIBIT A and EXHIBIT B.  Such amount is 

determined for all participating County Fire Agencies as specified in the schedule in EXHIBIT D, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

  (d) Schedule.  In April of each year, Authority shall provide District with a 

detailed statement of service charges for the upcoming fiscal year.  District shall make semi-

annual payments to the Authority for one-half of the amount owed for each fiscal year, including 

reimbursement amounts and other charges as described herein.  District’s semi-annual payments 

will be billed each July and January and will be due within thirty (30) days of receiving a billing 

statement from the Authority.   

 



 3 

  (e) Changes in Participation.  District and Authority understand and agree that the 

cost sharing percentages set forth in Policy No. 332 (Revenue), the Fire District Cost Sharing 

Plan as set forth within EXHIBIT C and GIS Service Reimbursement Costs as set forth in 

EXHIBIT D are developed and based upon the anticipated participation of certain agencies 

including the fire districts listed in EXHIBIT C, Paragraph 3 and the fire agencies listed in 

EXHIBIT D, Paragraph 2.  In the event that a change of participation should occur during the life 

of this Agreement, the Authority Board of Directors reserves the right to revise any or all of the 

cost sharing percentages in accordance with the formula elements identified within Policy No. 

332 (Revenue) (EXHIBIT E) to account for such a change.  Should the Authority exercise its 

right in this regard, an official who represents the interests of all contracted fire districts will be 

consulted regarding any proposed revisions to the cost sharing percentage(s).  District shall be 

notified at least thirty (30) days in advance of any change in cost sharing percentage and its 

corresponding effect upon the District's payments. 

 

 4.  Termination.  This Agreement shall automatically be renewed for two (2) successive 

one (1) year periods in accordance with Paragraph 1, unless either party notifies the other in 

writing of its intent to terminate this Agreement at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of 

the then current annual term.   

 

 5.  Notice.  All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, waivers, or 

communications ("notices") that either party desires or is required to give to the other party or 

any other person shall be in writing and either personally serviced or sent by prepaid postage, 

first class mail.  Notices shall be addressed as appears below for each party, provided that if 

either party gives notice of a change of name or address, notices to the giver of that notice shall 

thereafter be given as demanded in that notice. 

 

 

 Authority: General Manager 

   Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 

   Communications Center, JPA 

   495 Upper Park Road, Santa Cruz,  CA  95065 

 

 District: As specified 

 

 6.  Mutual Indemnification.  It is agreed that the Authority shall defend, hold harmless, 

and indemnify District, its officers and employees, from any and all claims for injuries or 

damages to persons and/or property, which arises out of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and which results from the negligent act or omissions of the Authority, its officers, 

and/or employees. 



 4 

 It is further agreed that the District shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Authority, 

its officers and employees, from any and all claims for injuries or damages to persons and/or 

property, which arises out of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and which results from 

the negligent act or omissions of the District, its officers, and/or employees. 

 

 In the event of concurrent negligence of the Authority, its officers and/or employees, and 

District, its officers and/or employees, then the liability for any and all claims for injuries or 

damages to persons and/or property, which arises out of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement shall be apportioned according to the California theories of comparative negligence 

and/or equitable indemnity, as applicable.  

 

 In the event of a dispute as to indemnification, the payment of monies or apportionment  

of fault, as specified herein, the parties agree to select an arbitrator and be bound by the 

determination of the arbitrator.  If the parties cannot agree on the selection of an arbitrator, they 

shall contact the Santa Cruz County Arbitration Administrator pursuant to Cal. Rules of Court 

3.830, and select an arbitrator from the randomly selected list of names provided, and shall be 

entitled to preemptory challenges as specified in Cal. Rules of Court 3.815. 

 

 The arbitration shall be conducted according to Cal. Rules of Court 3.810 et. seq., which 

governs Judicial Arbitration Rules for Civil Cases.  The findings of the arbitrator shall be binding 

on all parties to the arbitration. 

 

 The duty of the Authority and District to indemnify and save harmless as set forth herein 

shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. 

 

 7.  Insurance.    

 

  (a)  Each party shall furnish the other with certificates of insurance evidencing the 

required coverage and there shall be a specific contractual liability endorsement extending 

coverage to include the contractual liability assumed by this Agreement.  These certificates shall 

specify or be endorsed to provide that thirty (30) days notice must be given, in writing, to the 

other party of any pending change in the limits of liability or of any cancellation or modification 

of the policy. 

 

  (b)  Each party shall have in effect, during the entire life of this Agreement, 

Workers' Compensation and employer liability insurance providing full statutory coverage.  Each 

party certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Labor Code Section 3700 which require every 



 5 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-

insurance in accordance with the provisions of the code. 

 

  (c)  Each Party shall take out and maintain during the entire life of this Agreement 

such bodily injury liability and property damage liability insurance as shall protect it from any 

and all claims for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as any and all 

claims for property damage which may arise from the performance of services under the 

Agreement.  Such insurance shall be combined single-limit bodily injury and property damage 

for each occurrence and shall include comprehensive liability of at least $1,000,000.00. 

 

  (d)  In the event of a breach of any provisions of this section, or in the event any 

notice is received which indicates any required insurance coverage will be diminished or 

canceled, the non-breaching party at its option may, notwithstanding any other provision of this 

Agreement to the contrary, immediately declare a material breach of this Agreement and suspend 

all further work or obligations pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 8.  Inspection of Records.  All records, books, reports, and documentation maintained by 

Authority related to performance under the Agreement shall be open for inspection by District 

upon demand at reasonable times.  

 

 9.  Merger Clause.  This Agreement, including the attached EXHIBITS "A", "B", "C", 

"D", and "E" sets forth the entire Agreement between the parties.  No subsequent alteration or 

variations shall be a valid part of this agreement unless made in writing and signed by the parties 

hereto. 

 



 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto by their duly authorized representatives have 

affixed their hands on the day and year in the Agreement first above written. 

 

 

 

Dated:  ____________________   _______________________________ 

                               Board Chairperson 

                                        Santa Cruz Regional 9-1-1 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________           

Attorney for the Authority 

 

 

 

Dated: _____________________   ________________________________ 

                                     President, Board of Directors 

       Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Attorney for the District 



 EXHIBIT A 

 

 AUTHORITY PROVISION OF SERVICES 

 

 

1.   Basic Communications Services are described as: 

 

(a)  Complete radio transmitting and receiving services required for rapid and 

efficient dispatch of fire resources. 

 

(b)  Telephone and 9-1-1 answering services for emergency calls 24 hours per day, 

7 days per week; answering for other fire related matters during non-business 

hours. Telephone answering services also include text-to-9-1-1, TDD, and foreign 

language translation services. 

 

(c) Provide Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) pre-arrival and lifesaving 

protocols as established by Santa Cruz County EMS and approved by Santa Cruz 

County Health Services. 

 

(d)  The beneficial use of a Computer Aided Dispatch System (CAD) consisting of 

hardware and specialized software components that provide automatic status 

keeping, geographical referencing, unit recommendations, and other significant 

public safety capabilities including a Management Reporting System (MIS).  

Specialized fire reporting (i.e. CFIRS) is not included as a basic service. 

 

(e)  Common computer network support services associated with devices directly 

connected to the CAD system and the maintenance coordination thereof.   

 

(f)  Provisions for a standard, automated file of closed incident dispatch data.   

 

2.   Discretionary Communications Services are described as: 

 

(a)  At the discretion of the District, certain devices may be directly or indirectly 

connected to the CAD system.  These devices may include (but are not limited to) 

leased phone lines, computers, tablets, smartphones, printers, modems, multi-plex 

devices, etc.  All costs associated with these devices are the responsibility of the 

District.  Authority shall provide and coordinate services for these devices and the 

District shall reimburse such costs to the Authority. 

 



SCR911 
EXHIBIT A – FIRE DISTRICT AGREEMENT 

2 

 
(b)  District and Authority shall equally share in the costs of installing and 

maintaining dedicated voice telephone lines, which are deemed necessary by 

mutual agreement of the parties, to the District Fire station(s).  Authority shall 

provide and coordinate these discretionary services and the District shall reimburse 

the costs to the Authority for their equal share. 

 

        

(c)  At the discretion of the District, closed incident dispatch data residing in a 

standard, automated file, will be made available for periodic (automated or 

manual) transfer to the District at the District expense.  In the event that the 

District elects to transfer such data in automated and/or electronic fashion, the 

District shall be responsible for all costs associated with the development and/or 

purchase of any specialized software interface(s) and/or specialized equipment 

necessary.  

 

   

 

3. Geographical Information System and Mapping Services are described as: 

 

(a) Serving as the GIS technical resource to all County Fire Agencies and the County 

contracted Paramedic Transport Provider. 

 

(b) Identifying, designing and developing GIS applications and databases. 

 

(c) Recommending, installing, troubleshooting and supporting mutually acceptable GIS 

software, databases and spreadsheets. 

 

(d) Developing and administering quality control standards for map and data attribute 

conversion, maintenance and display. 

 

(e) Producing and distributing electronic maps for pre-planning, reporting, routing (Run 

Books), and other purposes. 

 

(f) Coordinating GIS/technical activities on behalf of all County Fire and the County 

contracted Paramedic Transport Provider with other County and City GIS staff to 

facilitate information sharing. 

 



SCR911 
EXHIBIT A – FIRE DISTRICT AGREEMENT 

3 

 
4.  Changes to Basic and/or Discretionary Services.  Upon mutual agreement of both parties, 

certain changes and modifications to the Basic and/or Discretionary Services may be made.  All 

mutually agreeable modifications or changes shall be reduced to written form and jointly 

approved by the District Fire Chief and the Authority General Manager.  Such changes or 

modification shall not be construed as altering the general intent of the original Agreement.    

 

5.  Future Additional Services.  The District and the Authority recognize that a modern, 

automated and consolidated communications center may offer certain cost effective opportunities 

to add related and specialized services on a District, area or regional basis.  The parties further 

understand and agree than any future additional services would be added only upon mutual 

agreement and would be funded by the District or Districts receiving such service.  Examples of 

future additional services may include, but would not be limited to, specialized fire reporting 

(CFIRS), third party Mobile Data systems, IP Station Alerting, and Incident Management tools.   

 

6.   In providing communications services, the Authority shall: 

 

(a)  Provide working space and facilities at the Center for the personnel and 

equipment described in this agreement. 

 

(b)  Provide and maintain telephone equipment to accommodate the District's 9-1-1 

and seven digit emergency telephone and text volume. 

 

(c)  Provide a general business telephone number that can be used for official 

business of the District to communicate directly with the Fire Dispatcher. 

 

(d)  Provide radio console and control equipment and connections to effect radio 

transmissions from and between the Center and the District on frequencies which 

are mutually acceptable. 

 

(e)  Provide recording equipment to log and record incoming and outgoing District 

related radio and telephone transmissions/incidents. 

 

(f)  Serve as the District's Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) for 9-1-1 

emergency service, in accordance with the rules, policies and regulations of the 

State of California 9-1-1 Emergency Communications Branch and National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) standards. 

 



SCR911 
EXHIBIT A – FIRE DISTRICT AGREEMENT 

4 

 
(g)  Maintain detailed incident records "on-line" for at least 365 days and 

permanently for at least three (3) years. 

 

(h)  Jointly share with the District in the responsibility for developing and 

maintaining the automated geographical file of District response areas and status 

plans needed for accurate CAD dispatching.  Authority shall ensure prompt 

modification and update of CAD files.  District shall ensure prompt, written 

notification to the Authority of updated information and/or requests for file 

modifications. 

 

(i)  Ensure that all fire dispatchers have attended and successfully completed initial 

classroom instruction in Fire Communications procedures and that they remain 

capable of providing service that meets or exceeds established performance 

standards. 

 

(j)  Adhere to the instructions or commands of the Incident Commander or Senior 

Fire Officer regarding fire incident or operations. 

 

(k)  Coordinate the development of a Quality Improvement (QI) Program designed 

to improve the overall quality of dispatch services provided to the District.  

Program shall be developed in collaboration with the Fire/EMS Task Team and 

Users Committee. Statistical reports based on information obtained from the 

Management Information System (MIS) will be used to track dispatch 

performance.  District representatives will participate in the QI program by 

assisting in the development of performance standards and providing performance 

feedback.  

 

(l) Administer Public Alert and Warning tool (IPAWS and emergency notification 

system). 

 

(m) Provide an annual report summarizing operations and performance standards. 



 EXHIBIT B 

 

 OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT 

 

 

1.   The District shall: 

 

(a)  Provide at its own facility, personnel and/or arrangements to answer and 

coordinate incoming business and other non-emergency calls during business 

hours; during after hour periods, the District will provide a recording for its 

business telephone lines which will inform callers that emergency calls should be 

directed to 9-1-1 and that non-emergency, business calls should be made on the 

following business day. 

 

(b)  Participate with other County Fire Agencies, the Authority, and other 

ancillary users, in providing for the installation, modification, maintenance, and 

operation of the Fire Radio Network of frequencies, which shall include at least a 

single common frequency shared by all County Fire Agencies for the purpose of 

consolidated dispatching services.    

 

(c)  Participate with other County Fire Agencies, the Authority, and the County 

contracted Paramedic Transport Provider, in providing guidance and support to 

the Authority staff assigned to provide specialized geographical information 

system and mapping services to county fire and emergency medical services 

agencies.  Reimburse the Authority, minus any off-setting revenue contributions 

collected by the Authority from the County contracted Paramedic Transport 

Provider, for such services provided on behalf of all County Fire Agencies in 

accordance with the cost sharing schedule in EXHIBIT D. 

 

(d) Jointly share with the Authority in the responsibility for developing and 

maintaining the automated geographical file of District response areas and status 

plans needed for accurate CAD dispatching.  District shall give prompt, written 

notification to the Authority of updated information and/or requests for file 

modification.  Authority shall ensure prompt modification and update of CAD 

files. 

 

 

(e) Designate a chief officer to regularly attend and participate in the Fire/EMS 

Task Team and Users Committee meetings in order to: 



SCR911 
EXHIBIT B – FIRE DISTRICT AGREEMENT 

2 

 
a. Ensure communication between the District and the Authority 

b. Develop communications policy and procedure  

c. Participate in the Authority developed Quality Improvement (QI) 

program by assisting in the development of performance standards and 

providing performance feedback. 

 

(f)  Reimburse the Authority on an "as billed" basis for all cost associated with the 

District's discretionary implementation of devices directly connected to the CAD system. 

These devices may include (but are not limited to) leased phone lines, terminals, PC's, 

printers, modems, multi-plex devices, etc. 

 

(g)  Be responsible for all costs associated with the discretionary development of 

any specialized software interface(s) designed to directly and/or electronically 

transfer CAD data to the District computer system. 

 

(h)  Equally share with the Authority in the costs of installing and maintaining 

dedicated voice telephone lines, which are deemed necessary by mutual 

agreement of the parties, to the District fire station(s).  District shall reimburse the 

Authority for their equal share on an "as billed" basis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 EXHIBIT C 

 

 FIRE DISTRICT COST SHARING PLAN 

 

1.   The total percentage of the Authority's Annual Budget which is the collective 
responsibility of all participating Fire Districts is set forth within Policy No. 332, Revenue 
(attached) and specifically sets such percentages as follows: 
 
 (a)  Fiscal Year 2022/2023   -     3.40% 
 
 (b)  Fiscal Year 2023/2024    -     3.40% 
 

(c)  Fiscal Year 2024/2025    -     3.40% 
 
2.   Annual charges for Basic Communications Services shall be calculated by using the 
following formula: 
 
 TOTAL ANNUAL AUTHORITY OPERATING EXPENDITURES 
 
 X 
 
 COLLECTIVE FIRE DISTRICT COST SHARING PERCENTAGE 
 (for the appropriate Fiscal Year) 
 
 + 
 

COST SHARING ADJUSTMENT 
 

X 
 
 DISTRICT PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL 2019, 2020, and 2021 FIRE DISTRICT CALLS 
 
 EQUALS 
 
 DISTRICT'S ANNUAL CHARGE FOR BASIC SERVICES 
 
3.   For the purpose of this cost sharing plan, the following tally of fire district calls will be 
used to determine District Percentage of Total 2019, 2020, and 2021 Fire District Calls: 
 

Fire District Avg Calls during Counting 
Period 

District % 

Ben Lomond  462  3.87% 

Boulder Creek  991  8.31% 

Branciforte  142  1.19% 

Central  7,530  63.15% 

Felton  632  5.30% 

Scotts Valley  1,966  16.49% 

Zayante  200  1.68%  

  



 EXHIBIT D 

 
 
 DISCRETIONARY SERVICES  

(GIS, HIPLINK, TABLET COMMAND, AND FIREDISPATCH.COM) 

 

REIMBURSEMENT PLAN 

 

 
1.  The District shall reimburse the Authority, in accordance with the following cost sharing 
schedule, for it’s proportionate share of the Authority’s actual costs associated with providing 
specialized geographical information system (GIS) services, 2) providing connections to service 
providers – Tablet Command, Hiplink and website Firedispatch.com.. 
 

Fire Agency Calls 

(Avg of 2016, 2017, and 2018 

Agency % 

Ben Lomond  462 1.85% 

Boulder Creek  991  3.97% 

Branciforte 142  0.57% 

Central 7,530  30.19% 

Felton  632 2.54% 

Santa Cruz  7,916  31.74% 

Scotts Valley 1,966  7.88% 

Watsonville 5,101  20.45% 

Zayante  200  0.80%  

                                                
2.  The total annual reimbursement amount will be determined based upon the actual costs 
associated with 1) staffing one (1) FTE GIS specialist, and 2) providing data and connections and 
service fee for services Hiplink Firedispatch.com, and Tablet Command (interface costs only; 
T.C. subscriptions invoiced annually outside of the SCR9-1-1 budget based on actual costs). 
, 
 
 
  



Policy No. 332 Page 1 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

 

 

1.0 Pursuant to Section 6, Sub-section B, paragraph 1 of the Agreement, the Parties to the 
Agreement shall pay for the entire operation of the Center, with the annual 
expenditure budget determining the total amount of assessment required from each 
Party to the Agreement by the formula included. 

 
1.1 The total assessment against each Party to the Agreement will be 

reduced by expected revenue from executed contracts with associate 
User Agencies for dispatch and other communications services. 

 
2.0 The formula included in the Agreement is based upon the population and the assessed 

value of each participating political jurisdiction. 
 

2.1 This formula determines the cost sharing of the Parties to the 
Agreement as follows: 

 
2.1.1 Santa Cruz County   - 59.78% 
2.1.2 City of Watsonville   - 14.57% 
2.1.3 City of Santa Cruz   - 20.16% 
2.1.4 City of Capitola  - 05.49% 

 
2.2 This formula shall be in effect through the Fiscal Year 1994/95. 

 
2.2.1 This formula will also be used to distribute that portion of 

any bond proceeds necessary to reimburse the Parties to the 
Agreement for their capital cost contributions beginning 
July 1, 1993. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS ADMINISTRATIVE 

POLICY/PROCEDURE 

 

    
Policy No. 332 Date Issued: March 18, 1993 

Section:   300 – Fiscal Policies Date Revised: February 24, 2022 

  
 

SUBJECT: REVENUE - GENERAL 

 

APPROVED:      

 Board Chairperson 
  

SANTA CRUZ REGIONAL 9-1-1 
495 Upper Park Rd, Santa Cruz, CA 95065 

831.471.1000  Fax 831.471.1010 
www.scr911.org 

 

Amethyst Uchida, General Manager 

 



Policy No. 332 Page 2 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

 
3.0 Beginning with Fiscal Year 1995/96 and concluding with Fiscal Year 1998/99, a 

three year interim formula based upon the following elements will be used to 
determine service charges for the Member Agencies and associate User Agencies.  

 
3.1 Readiness to Serve or Base Fee (33.33% or 1/3 of the interim 

formula). 
 

3.1.1 Readiness to Serve is defined as a fee element based 
upon the notion that similar agencies must be equally 
prepared, staffed, equipped and trained to receive and 
handle a Call for Service. 

 
3.1.2 The Readiness to Serve element, equaling 33.33% of 

the total formula, is distributed as follows: 
 

3.1.2.1 Santa Cruz County   - 15.00% 
3.1.2.2 City of Watsonville   - 05.00% 
3.1.2.3 City of Santa Cruz   - 05.00% 
3.1.2.4 City of Capitola   - 05.00% 
3.1.2.5 EMS Provider   - 01.66% 
3.1.2.6 Fire Districts    - 01.66% 

 
3.1.3 Readiness to Serve percentages will remain constant 

and will not be adjusted during the life of this interim 
formula. 

 
3.2 Calls For Service (33.33% or 1/3 of the interim formula). 

 
3.2.1 Calls for Service are established and defined by Policy No. 

260. 
 

3.2.2 Calls for Service, equaling 33.33% of the total formula, 
are based upon manual calculations performed over 
comparable time periods resulting in the following 
distribution: 

 
3.2.2.1 Santa Cruz County   - 14.01% 
3.2.2.2 City of Watsonville   - 05.71% 
3.2.2.3 City of Santa Cruz   - 09.09% 
3.2.2.4 City of Capitola   - 02.29% 
3.2.2.5 EMS Provider   - 01.22% 
3.2.2.6 Fire Districts    - 01.01% 
 

3.2.3 Calls for Service will not be recalculated or adjusted 
during the life of this interim formula. 

 
3.3 Previous Year Costs or Moving Average (33.33% or 1/3 of the interim 

formula). 
 



Policy No. 332 Page 3 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

3.3.1 Previous Year Costs, as an element of the interim 
formula to be used in Fiscal Year 1995/96, are 
established as based upon budget analysis performed 
and percentage comparisons derived from the Budget 
Year 1993/94.   

 
3.3.2 Previous Year Costs, equaling 33.34% or 1/3 of the 

total formula, are distributed for the first year of the 
interim formula (Fiscal Year 1995/96) as follows: 

 
3.3.2.1 Santa Cruz County   - 15.17% 
3.3.2.2 City of Watsonville   - 06.38% 
3.3.2.3 City of Santa Cruz   - 05.56% 
3.3.2.4 City of Capitola   - 03.99% 
3.3.2.5 EMS Provider   - 01.03% 
3.3.2.6 Fire Districts    - 01.21% 

 
3.3.3 Previous Year Costs will be adjusted annually for use in 

determining Fiscal Year 1996/97 and Fiscal Year 
1997/98 costs based upon the actual percentages of 
previous year costs as established through the use of the 
interim formula.  

 
4.0 The interim formula as established and defined by this policy determines cost sharing 

for the Member Agencies (Parties) and the associate User Agencies as follows: 
 

4.1 Fiscal Year 1995/96 
 

4.1.1 Santa Cruz County      - 44.18% 
4.1.2 City of Watsonville    - 17.09% 
4.1.3 City of Santa Cruz     - 19.65% 
4.1.4 City of Capitola       - 11.28% 
4.1.5 EMS Provider           - 03.91% 
4.1.6 Fire Districts         - 03.89% 

 
4.2 Fiscal Year 1996/97 

 
4.2.1 Santa Cruz County      - 43.75% 
4.2.2 City of Watsonville    - 16.41% 
4.2.3 City of Santa Cruz     - 20.64% 
4.2.4 City of Capitola       - 11.05% 
4.2.5 EMS Provider           - 04.18% 
4.2.6 Fire Districts         - 03.97% 

 
4.3 Fiscal Year 1997/98 

 
4.3.1 Santa Cruz County      - 43.58% 
4.3.2 City of Watsonville    - 16.18% 
4.3.3 City of Santa Cruz     - 20.96% 
4.3.4 City of Capitola       - 10.97% 



Policy No. 332 Page 4 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

4.3.5 EMS Provider           - 04.28% 
4.3.6 Fire Districts         - 04.03% 

 
5.0 Beginning with Fiscal Year 1998/99 and continuing until such time as it is modified 

by the Board of Directors, a formula based upon the following elements will be used 
to determine service charges for the Member Agencies and associate User Agencies. 

 
5.1 Readiness to Serve or Base Fee (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula). 

 
5.1.1 Readiness to Serve is defined in paragraph 3.1.1 of this 

policy. 
 

5.1.2 The Readiness to Serve element, equaling 33.33% of 
the total formula, is distributed as follows: 

 
5.1.2.1 Santa Cruz County      - 15.00% 
5.1.2.2 City of Watsonville    - 05.00% 
5.1.2.3 City of Santa Cruz     - 05.00% 
5.1.2.4 City of Capitola       - 05.00% 
5.1.2.5 EMS Provider           - 01.66% 
5.1.2.6 Fire Districts         - 01.66% 

 
5.1.3 Readiness to Serve percentages will remain constant 

and will not be adjusted during the life of the formula. 
 

5.2 Calls For Service (66.67% or 2/3 of the formula). 
 

5.2.1 Calls for Service are established and defined by Policy 
No. 260. 

 
5.2.2 Calls for Service, equaling 66.67% of the total formula, 

will be based upon an automated data analysis of the 
model year period beginning on September 1, 1996 and 
concluding on August 30, 1997. 

 
6.0 Beginning with Fiscal Year 2001/02, and continuing until such time as 

it is modified by the Board of Directors, a formula based upon the 
following elements will be used to determine service charges for the 
Member Agencies and Associate User Agencies. 

 
6.1 Readiness to Service or Base Fee (50.00% or 1/2 of the 

formula).  
 
6.1.1 Readiness to Serve is defined in paragraph 3.1.1 of this 

policy. 
 
6.1.2 Readiness to Serve element, equaling 50.00% of the 

total formula, is distributed as follows:  
 

6.1.2.1 Santa Cruz County   - 15.84% 



Policy No. 332 Page 5 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

6.1.2.2 City of Watsonville   - 06.58% 
6.1.2.3 City of Santa Cruz   - 12.09% 
6.1.2.4 City of Capitola   - 05.83% 
6.1.2.5 EMS Provider   - 05.83% 
6.1.2.6 Fire Districts    - 03.83% 

 
6.1.3 Beginning Fiscal Year 2013/2014, and continuing until 

such time as it is modified by the Board of Directors, 
the Readiness to Serve is distributed as follows: 
 
6.1.3.1 Santa Cruz County  - 12.46% 
6.1.3.2 City of Watsonville  - 6.32% 
6.1.3.3 City of Santa Cruz  - 9.50% 
6.1.3.4 City of Capitola  - 4.85% 
6.1.3.5 EMS Provider   - 4.04% 
6.1.3.6 Fire Districts   - 2.31% 
6.1.3.7 City of Hollister  - 7.15% 
6.1.3.8 San Benito County  - 3.37% 

 
6.1.4 Beginning Fiscal Year 2017/2018, and continuing until 

such time as it is modified by the Board of Directors, 
the Readiness to Serve is distributed as follows: 

 
6.1.4.1 Santa Cruz County  -12.08% 
6.1.4.2 City of Watsonville  -6.11% 
6.1.4.3 City of Santa Cruz   -10.62% 
6.1.4.4 City of Capitola  -4.74% 
6.1.4.5 EMS Provider   -3.94% 
6.1.4.6 Fire Districts   -2.25% 
6.1.4.7 City of Hollister  -6.98% 
6.1.4.8 County of San Benito  -3.28% 
 

6.1.5 Readiness to Serve percentages will remain constant 
and will not be adjusted during the life of the formula. 

 
6.2 Calls for Service (25.00% or 1/4 of the formula).  

 
6.2.1 Calls for Service are established and defined by Policy 

No. 260. 
 
6.2.2 Calls for Service, equaling 25.00% of the total formula, 

will be based upon an automated count for the two year 
period beginning on January 1, 1999 and concluding on 
December 31, 2000.  

 
6.2.2.1 The General Manager may recommend, and the 

Board may approve, adjustments to the Calls for 
Service element of the formula to account for 
significant operational and/or jurisdictional 
changes (causing workload shifts among 



Policy No. 332 Page 6 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

Agencies) during the automated counting 
period. 

 
6.2.3 Calls for Service will be recalculated every three (3) 

years thereafter during the life of the formula. 
 

6.3 Weighted Calls for Service (25.00% or 1/4 of the formula).  
 
6.3.1 A process by which to assign differing values to certain 

Calls for Service to reflect the Center's work effort in 
support of specific Member and/or Associate Member 
Agencies shall be recommended by the General 
Manager and approved by the Board of Directors in 
advance of each adjustment period. 

 
6.3.2 Weighted Calls for Service, equaling 25.00% of the 

total formula, will be based upon an automated analysis 
of the two year period beginning on January 1, 1999 
and concluding on December 31, 2000.  

 
6.3.2.1 The General Manager may recommend, and the 

Board may approve, adjustments to the 
Weighted Calls for Service element of the 
formula to account for significant operational 
and/or jurisdictional changes (causing workload 
shifts among Agencies) during the analysis 
period. 

 
6.3.3 Weighted Calls for Service will be re-analyzed and 

adjusted every three (3) years thereafter during the life 
of the formula. 
 

7.0 Beginning with Fiscal Year 2019/2020, and continuing until such time 
as it is modified by the Board of Directors, a formula based upon the 
following elements will be used to determine service charges for the 
Member Agencies and Associate User Agencies. 
 
7.1 Post Positions (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula). 

 
7.1.1 Based upon staffing patterns, each agency will be 

assessed a percentage of the total staff based on how the 
communications center is staffed.  
 

 
7.1.2 Beginning Fiscal Year 2019/2020, and continuing until 

such time as it is modified by the Board of Directors, 
Post Position percentages are distributed as follows: 

 
7.1.2.1 Santa Cruz County   20.83% 
7.1.2.2 City of Watsonville   13.75% 



Policy No. 332 Page 7 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

7.1.2.3 City of Santa Cruz    23.55% 
7.1.2.4 City of Capitola   9.90% 
7.1.2.5 EMS Provider    5.96% 
7.1.2.6 Fire Districts    3.09% 
7.1.2.7 City of Hollister   18.15% 
7.1.2.8 County of San Benito   4.77% 
 

7.1.3 Post Position percentages will remain constant and will 
not be adjusted during the life of the formula, unless 
there is a significant change in the staffing patterns. 

 
7.2 Calls for Service (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula).  

 
7.2.1 Calls for Service are established and defined by Policy 

No. 260. 
 
7.2.2 Calls for Service, equaling 33.33% of the total formula, 

will be based upon an automated count for the three 
year period beginning on January 1, 2016 and 
concluding on December 31, 2018.  

 
7.2.2.1 The General Manager may recommend, and the 

Board may approve, adjustments to the Calls for 
Service element of the formula to account for 
significant operational and/or jurisdictional 
changes (causing workload shifts among 
Agencies) during the automated counting 
period. 

 
7.2.3 Calls for Service will be recalculated every three years 

thereafter during the life of the formula and will include 
the previous three years’ worth of calls. 

 
7.3 Radio Usage (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula). 

 
7.3.1 Radio Usage is defined as the percentage of radio 

traffic associated with each agency’s radio frequencies 
as measured by the Authority’s voice recording system. 
 

7.3.2 Radio usage, equaling 33% of the total formula, will be 
based upon a report obtained from the Authority’s voice 
recorder which measures the percentage of the overall 
use by each channel as compared to all the channels.   

 
7.3.3 Radio usage will be based upon the report for the three 

year period beginning on January 1, 2016 and 
concluding on December 31, 2018.   

 



Policy No. 332 Page 8 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

7.3.4 Radio usage will be recalculated every three years 
thereafter during the life of this formula and will 
include the previous three years’ work of radio usage. 

 
 
8.0 Beginning with Fiscal Year 2022/2023, and continuing until such time 

as it is modified by the Board of Directors, a formula based upon the 
following elements will be used to determine service charges for the 
Member Agencies and Associate User Agencies. 
 
8.1 Post Positions (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula). 

 
8.1.1 Based upon staffing patterns, each agency will be 

assessed a percentage of the total staff based on how the 
communications center is staffed.  
 

 
8.1.2 Beginning Fiscal Year 2022/2023, and continuing until 

such time as it is modified by the Board of Directors, 
Post Position percentages are distributed as follows: 

 
8.1.2.1 Santa Cruz County   21.20% 
8.1.2.2 City of Watsonville   14.46% 
8.1.2.3 City of Santa Cruz    20.67% 
8.1.2.4 City of Capitola   10.33% 
8.1.2.5 EMS Provider    6.14% 
8.1.2.6 Fire Districts    3.30% 
8.1.2.7 City of Hollister   18.27% 
8.1.2.8 County of San Benito   5.64% 
 

8.1.3 Post Position percentages will remain constant and will 
not be adjusted during the life of the formula, unless 
there is a significant change in the staffing patterns. 

 
8.2 Calls for Service (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula).  

 
8.2.1 Calls for Service are established and defined by Policy 

No. 260. 
 
8.2.2 Calls for Service, equaling 33.33% of the total formula, 

will be based upon an automated count for the three 
year period beginning on January 1, 2019 and 
concluding on December 31, 2021.  

 
8.2.2.1 The General Manager may recommend, and the 

Board may approve, adjustments to the Calls for 
Service element of the formula to account for 
significant operational and/or jurisdictional 
changes (causing workload shifts among 



Policy No. 332 Page 9 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

Agencies) during the automated counting 
period. 

 
8.2.3 Calls for Service will be recalculated every three years 

thereafter during the life of the formula and will include 
the previous three years’ worth of calls. 

 
8.3 Radio Usage (33.33% or 1/3 of the formula). 

 
8.3.1 Radio Usage is defined as the percentage of radio 

traffic associated with each agency’s radio frequencies 
as measured by the Authority’s voice recording system. 
 

8.3.2 Radio usage, equaling 33% of the total formula, will be 
based upon a report obtained from the Authority’s voice 
recorder which measures the percentage of the overall 
use by each channel as compared to all the channels.   

 
8.3.3 Radio usage will be based upon the report for the three 

year period beginning on January 1, 2019 and 
concluding on December 31, 2021.   

 
8.3.4 Radio usage will be recalculated every three years 

thereafter during the life of this formula and will 
include the previous three years’ worth of radio usage. 

 
9.0 The Fire Districts cost sharing percentages as determined through the 

use of the formula outlined in this policy are based upon the collective 
total of all districts. 

 
9.1 An independent and standardized formula will be jointly 

developed and utilized to distribute total Fire District costs 
among each of the specific participating districts 
 

9.2 The independent Fire District formula, complimented by the 
particular JPA formula, will be detailed in the agency specific 
Service Agreement(s). 
 

10.0 The cost sharing percentage for each of the Member Agencies (Parties) 
and associate User Agencies, as derived from the use of the formulas as 
outlined within this policy, will not increase or decrease more than 
twenty (20%) percent per adjustment period over/under the previous 
year percentages. 

 
11.0 Each Party to the Agreement shall pay its share of the total operating 

costs in quarterly installments as described in Section 6, sub-section D 
of the Agreement 

 
11.1 The Board of Directors may set a different payment schedule for 

the purchase of capital items. 



Policy No. 332 Page 10 of 10 
 

City of Capitola   City of Santa Cruz   City of Watsonville   County of Santa Cruz 

 
12.0 Each Associate User Agency shall pay its share as outlined within their 

agency specific Service Agreement(s). 
 

13.0 The General Manager is authorized to accept reimbursements for extra 
services provided beyond normal, daily operations not exceeding 
$20,000 per request. Reimbursement for services exceeding $20,000 
must be accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 
























































































































































	5-11-2022 AGENDA
	Item4.1 Regular Board Minutes 3-9-2022
	Item4.2 Special Board Minutes 4-13-2022
	Item4.3 March 2022 Expenditures
	Item4.4 April 2022 Expenditures
	Item4.5 Surplus Equipment List
	Item6.1 SCCECC Agreement 2022
	Item6.2 2022-2023 Preliminary Budget
	Item6.3 Audit Services RFP
	Item7.2 SCHMIT Report
	Item7.3 Administrative Report
	Item8.1 Thank You Letter Senior Life Online
	Item8.2 Thank You Letter SV High

